

CARINA FOURIE

Department of Philosophy, University of Washington
☞ Savery Hall, Room 361, Box 353350, Seattle, WA 98195-3350
☎ +1 206 543 6440
✉ fourie@uw.edu

CURRENT POSITION

I am the **Benjamin Rabinowitz Assistant Professor of Medical Ethics** at the Philosophy Department of the University of Washington in Seattle. My research and teaching includes work in Population-Level Bioethics, Clinical Ethics, Applied Ethics and Political Philosophy. I am particularly interested in equality and social justice, and their application to health. I have published on social-relational equality, sufficiency and health justice, health care reform, and moral distress in nursing, among other topics. In the academic year 2015-6, I am teaching: Equality and Racial Injustice PHIL 410A; Public Health Ethics PHIL 401C; Introduction to Medical Ethics PHIL 242; Capstone Workshop PHIL 513A; and Ethics in Practice PHIL 495A.

EDUCATION

2007	PhD in Moral and Political Philosophy (University College London) Thesis title: Justice and the Duties of Social Equality.
2001	MA in Philosophy (University of Johannesburg)
1999	BA Honours in Philosophy (University of Johannesburg)
1998	BA in Psychology, Philosophy and English (University of Johannesburg)

PUBLICATIONS in Philosophy & Biomedical Ethics

I. Peer-Reviewed Journal Papers

- I. Fourie, C. 2015. 'Moral Distress and Moral Conflict in Clinical Ethics' in *Bioethics*. (2):91-7. doi: 10.1111/bioe.12064. Epub 2013 Nov 8.
- II. Wild, V. et al [second author of multi-author paper]. 2015. 'Assessing the impact of DRGs on patient care and professional practice in Switzerland (IDoC) – a potential model for monitoring and evaluating healthcare reform' in *Swiss Medical Weekly*; 145:w14034. doi: 10.4414/smw.2015.14034.
- III. Fourie, C. Biller-Andorno, N. and Wild, V. 2014. 'Systematically Evaluating the Impact of Diagnosis-Related Groups (DRGs) on Health Care Delivery: A Matrix of Ethical Implications' in *Health Policy*. 115(2-3):157-64. Epub 2013 Dec 5.
- IV. Fourie, C. 2013. 'The Basic Structure Objection and the Institutions of a Property-Owning Democracy' in *Analyse & Kritik* 35: 187–192.
- V. Fourie, C. 2012. 'What is Social Equality? Status Equality as a Strongly Egalitarian Ideal' in *Res Publica* 18 (2), 107-126.

2. Books & Monographs

- I. Fourie, C and A. Rid (eds.). Forthcoming. *What Is Enough? Sufficiency, Health and Justice*. Oxford University Press, USA.
- II. Fourie, C., Schuppert, F. and I. Wallimann-Helmer (eds.). 2015. *Social Equality: On What It Means to be Equals*. Oxford University Press, USA.

3. Contributions to Collected Volumes

- I. Fourie, C. Forthcoming. 'Sufficiency of Capabilities, Social Equality and Two-Tiered Health Care Systems'. In C. Fourie & A. Rid (eds.) *What Is Enough? Sufficiency, Health and Justice*. Oxford University Press, USA.
- II. Fourie, C. Forthcoming. 'The Sufficiency View'. In C. Fourie & A. Rid (eds.) *What Is Enough? Sufficiency, Health and Justice*. Oxford University Press, USA.
- III. Fourie, C and Wild, V. Forthcoming. ['Public Accountability and Swiss Health Care Reform']. In Rauprich, O. (ed.) *[Ethical Decision-making in Biomedicine: From Conflict to Solutions]*. Akademie für Ethik in der Medizin (AEM). Titles translated from the German.
- IV. Fourie, C. 2015. 'To Praise and to Scorn: The Problem of Inequalities of Esteem for Social Egalitarianism.' In C. Fourie et al. (eds.) *Social Equality: On What It Means to be Equals*. Oxford University Press, USA.
- V. Fourie, C., Schuppert, F. and I. Wallimann-Helmer. 2015. 'The Nature and Distinctiveness of Social Equality.' In C. Fourie et al. (eds.) *Social Equality: On What It Means to be Equals*. Oxford University Press, USA.
- VI. Fourie, C. 2012. 'What Do Theories of Social Justice Have to Say about Health Care Rationing?' In den Exter, A. and Buijsen, M. (eds.) *Rationing Health Care: Hard Choices and Unavoidable Trade-offs*. Antwerpen: Maklu Press.

4. Book Reviews

- I. Fourie, C. Forthcoming. '*Inequality: what can be done?* by Anthony B. Atkinson.' *Economics and Philosophy*.
- II. Fourie, C. 2016. 'Reassessing Egalitarianism by Jeremy Moss'. *Australasian Journal of Philosophy*, DOI: 10.1080/00048402.2015.11130732.
- III. Fourie, C. 2013. 'Health Justice: An Argument from the Capabilities Approach'. *Medicine, Health Care and Philosophy* 16 (2), 318-9.
- IV. Fourie, C. 2012. 'Responsibility and distributive justice'. *Philosophy in Review* 32 (22), 111-3.
- V. Fourie, C. 2004. 'The many faces of evil: review' in *Philosophy Today*, 18 (47), 4-5.

PUBLICATIONS in Occupational Health

- I. Fourie, C. et al, 2010. *Fatigue Risk Management Systems: A Review of the Literature*. RSSR 110. London: Department for Transport.
- II. Fourie, C. et al. 2010. *Interviews with Operators, Regulators and Researchers with Experience of Implementing Fatigue Risk Management Systems*. RSSR 120. London: Department for Transport.

RESEARCH AND ACADEMIC EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

01/2010–08-2015

Postdoctoral Fellow and Scientific Co-ordinator (Philosophy Department; Institute of Biomedical Ethics, University of Zurich)

I conducted philosophical research on population-level bioethics, medical ethics and health justice. I was also the scientific coordinator of a multidisciplinary research project, the IDoC Project (IDoC: Assessing the Impact of Diagnosis Related Groups [DRGs] on patient care and professional practice). I taught a number of courses in Biomedical Ethics, Political Philosophy and Applied Ethics. I also successfully applied for research and conference grants, and organized a number of workshops and symposia. (Full-time)

10/2006–12/2009

Senior Researcher (Clockwork Research, London)

I conducted literature reviews, and quantitative and qualitative research on occupational health for industry and government. I also successfully applied for commissioned research projects, managed research projects, and lectured and designed courses in occupational health. (Full-time)

09/2005–08/2006

Lecturer (Humanities Department, Tower Hamlets College, London)

Major responsibilities: Teaching Philosophy to AS and A2-level students at a 6th Form College; Designing course, Selecting course materials. (Part-time while studying)

09/2004–06/2005

Research Assistant (Philosophy Department, London School of Economics and Political Science)

Major responsibilities: Research for the design of a series of lectures in Political Philosophy. (Part-time while studying)

01/2004–03/2005

Tutor (Philosophy Department, University College London)

Major responsibilities: Tutoring first-year Philosophy undergraduates; Designing course; Selecting course materials. (Part-time while studying)

06/1999–12/1999

Lecturer (Philosophy Department, University of Johannesburg)

Major responsibilities: Teaching second-year Philosophy undergraduates. (Part-time while studying)

02/1996–12/1998

Teaching Assistant (Philosophy Department, University of Johannesburg)

Major responsibilities: Research, administration and marking at Philosophy Department. (Part-time while studying)

TEACHING EXPERIENCE

I have taught undergraduates and graduates from a range of fields including Philosophy, Public Health and Medicine. The courses I have designed and taught are primarily, but not exclusively, in Biomedical Ethics (including clinical ethics and public health ethics), Political and Social Philosophy, and Applied Ethics. I have designed and taught courses at universities in Germany, the Netherlands, South Africa, Switzerland, the United Kingdom, and the USA. I am happy to make my teaching portfolio available for further information.

GRANTS, AWARDS AND ACADEMIC HONORS

2015:	SNSF, University Research Priority Programme in Ethics (URPP in Ethics) and ZUNIV funding for workshop on 'Respect, Recognition and Equality'.
2014:	SNSF funding for a two-year research project on equality and health justice
2013:	SNSF and URPP in Ethics funding for organizing the workshop 'Social Gradients in Health'
2012:	SNSF and Corti foundation funding for organizing the workshop 'How much is enough? Sufficiency and Thresholds in Health Care'
2007-9:	Research Commission (UK Department for Transport)
2005, 2006:	Abe Bailey Bursary (Abe Bailey Trust, London)
2005:	AJ Ayers Bursary (University College London)
2002-5:	Commonwealth Scholarship (Association of Commonwealth Universities, London)
1995-9, 2001:	Merit bursaries (University of Johannesburg)
1998:	Annemarie Basson Award (University of Johannesburg)
1995-1998:	Top achiever awards (University of Johannesburg)

In Fall 2011, I was a Visiting Scholar at the Philosophy Department of the University of Michigan, and I was a Visiting Scholar in the Winter Semester of 2014/5 at the Munich Center for Ethics of the Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München (LMU Munich, Germany).

SERVICE

- I am a Member of the Munich Center for Ethics at the LMU Munich.
- I am a Member of the advisory board for the Global Health Minor at the School of Public Health, University of Washington.
- I am currently serving on the committees for graduate student admissions and graduate student placement at the Department of Philosophy, University of Washington.
- I am a World Health Organization expert in Health Law & Ethics for the Eastern Mediterranean Regional Office.
- I am a reviewer for the peer-reviewed journals *Bioethics*, *Public Health Ethics*, *Journal of Applied Philosophy*, *Journal of Business Ethics*, *Res Publica*, *Social Theory and Practice* and *Analyse und Kritik*. I have also reviewed books and book proposals for Cambridge University Press and Lexington Books.

- I have organized a number of conferences, symposia and workshops. For example, in 2015 I organized an international and interdisciplinary workshop on respect and social-relational equality in Zurich. I am currently organizing a Benjamin Rabinowitz Workshop in Medical Ethics on the theme of inequality and health at the University of Washington for April 2016.
- I am a member of the 'Women in Philosophy' and 'Philosophy and Medicine' groups of the American Philosophical Association.
- I am committed to advancing the interests of disadvantaged groups in Philosophy, and I am especially interested in promoting the representation and standing of women philosophers/academics.

LANGUAGES

- English (As mother-tongue)
- Afrikaans (Fluent)
- German (Intermediate-Advanced)

REFERENCES

1. Michael Rosenthal (Current supervisor)

Professor and Department Chair, Philosophy, University of Washington

Mailing Address: Department of Philosophy, Savery Hall, Room 361, University of Washington, Seattle, WA 98195

Phone: +1 206 685 2655

Email: rosentha@uw.edu

2. Sara Goering (Colleague)

Professor, Philosophy, University of Washington

Mailing Address: Department of Philosophy, Savery Hall, Room 361, University of Washington, Seattle, WA 98195

Phone: +1 206 616 2102

Email: sgoering@uw.edu

3. Peter Schaber (Former supervisor)

Professor of Applied Ethics, Philosophy, University of Zurich

Mailing address: Centre for Ethics of the University of Zurich, Zollikerstr. 117, CH-8008 Zurich, Switzerland

Phone: +41 44 634 85 26

Email: schaber@philos.uzh.ch

4. Jan-Christoph Heilingner (Co-teacher and former colleague)

Assistant Professor in Philosophy and Academic Director of the Ethics-Centre, Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München (Munich)

Mailing address: Munich Centre for Ethics, Ludwig-Maximilians-Universität München

Geschwister-Scholl-Platz 1, 80539 Munich, Germany

Phone: + 49 89 2180 6082

Email: heilingner@lmu.de

5. Jonathan Wolff (PhD thesis supervisor)

Dean of the Faculty of Arts, Professor and Head of Centre for Philosophy, Justice and Health, Philosophy Dept,
University College London

Mailing address: Andrew Huxley Building, UCL, Gower Street, London, WC1E 6BT, UK

Phone: + 44 20 7679 1346 (secretary)

Email: j.wolff@ucl.ac.uk

6. Nikola Biller-Andorno (Former supervisor)

Professor and Director, Institute of Biomedical Ethics, University of Zurich

Mailing address: Institute of Biomedical Ethics, Centre for Ethics of the University of Zurich, Pestalozzistrasse 24,
CH-8032 Zurich, Switzerland

Phone: + 41 44 634 40 81 (secretary)

Email: biller-andorno@ethik.uzh.ch